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Appear ances: Murray A. Battles, Ofice of the Solicitor
U S. Department of Labor, for Petitioner
Gl bert E. Johnston, Counsel for Respondent

Bef or e: Judge W I Iiam Fauver

Thi s proceedi ng was brought by the Secretary of Labor under
section 110(a) of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977,
30 U.S.C. 0801 et seq., for assessnent of civil penalties for
al l eged viol ati ons of mandatory safety standards. The case was
heard at Birm ngham Al abama. Both parties were represented by
counsel , who have submitted their proposed findings, conclusions,
and briefs follow ng receipt of the transcript.

Havi ng consi dered the contentions of the parties and the
record as a whole, | find that the preponderance of the reliable,
probative, and substantial evidence establishes the foll ow ng:

FI NDI NGS OF FACT

1. At all pertinent tines, Respondent Allied Products
Conpany operated a linme quarry and m |l known as the Mntevallo
Linme Plant in Shel by County, Al abama, which produced crushed
linestone for sales in or substantially affecting interstate
conmer ce

2. Respondent enpl oyed about 135 people at the plant and
operated the quarry in two 8-hour shifts, 6 days a week and the
mll in three 8-hour shifts, 7 days a week. Linestone was m ned
fromthe quarry and hauled to the mll, where it was crushed and
screened before being transported by conveyor belt for storage or
further processing in rotary kilns and ball mlls.
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3. An elevated dirt haul age road with a crushed |inestone
surface led to a spoil dunp about 1 mile fromthe plant. The road
was 33 feet wide, on a 7-percent grade, and had an el evati on
ranging fromb5 to 30 feet. Berns along the road were 6 to 18
i nches high. However, at sone points along the road the berns
wer e washed away by drai nage.

4. WIlliamE Evans, the quarry foreman, was responsible
for maintaining the berns along the dunp haul age road. The ber s,
which were a m xture of clay and stone, were |left behind as road
scrapi ngs when the road was constructed. Wen the berns washed
out, they were purposely left unrepaired so that water would
drain off the road instead of into the quarry.

5. Between Septenber 5, 1974, and March 30, 1977,
Respondent was issued 12 citations charging violations for
i nadequat e berns throughout the quarry and plant.

6. On Saturday norning, Novenber 25, 1978, one of
Respondent' s enpl oyees, Herman Shirley, was fatally injured while
operating a Clark 620 Bobcat front-end | oader on the dunp haul age
road. Shirley, who was 67 years old, worked in Respondent's
storeroom and would normal ly travel to supply houses in
Mont eval | 0 and Birmi nghamto pick up parts and accessories for
the plant's machi nery and equi prment. He was under the direct
supervi sion of Respondent's purchasing agent, Charlie Thornton
and the storekeeper, S. D. Posey. When he was not picking up
parts, Shirley would clean in and around the storeroom and hau
trash to the spoil dunp in a pick-up truck, which the genera
mll foreman, Joe Dial, used to drive to and from work.

7. Shirley normally worked on Saturday. However, he was
not scheduled to work on Novenmber 25, 1978, because all |aborers
and clerks were off until Monday, Novenber 27, follow ng the
Thanksgi ving holiday. He reported for work anyway at his usua
time, 7 a.m The packing yard foreman, J. C Smith, and the day
shift | eadman were in charge because Joe Dial was off. Smith did
not question Shirley's presence or tell himto go hone for the
hol i day week-end. The shop needed to be cl eaned and he deci ded
to let Shirley work that day. After Shirley cleaned the shop and
bat hhouses, he proceeded to | oad trash on the Bobcat because the
conpany truck that he normally used to carry trash was not
avai l able. Edward majors, a co-worker and friend of Shirley's,
saw Shirley about 9 a.m in the |unchroomrenoving trash to hau
to the dunp. He warned Shirley not to use the Bobcat because he
believed it was dangerous for Shirley to operate it.

8. Shirley nade one trip to the dunp, apparently hauling
two 55-gallon barrels of trash in the bucket of the Bobcat. On
the second trip, about 10:30 a.m, when he was hauling two
55-gal l on drums, the Bobcat overturned on his return down the
haul age road. The vehicle went through a washed-out area that had
no berm overturned down a 6-foot enbanknent and | anded on M.
Shirley, who was killed in the accident. At about 4:45 p.m,

Paul M senhi mer, Respondent's safety and personnel director
notified the MSHA field office in Birm nghamof the fatality and



an investigation began the follow ng day.
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9. On Novenber 26, 1978, Joe Garcia, a federal m ne inspector
i nspected Respondent's plant after learning of the fatality the
precedi ng evening. He was acconpanied by Bart Collinge, his
supervisor for mning safety, Paul M senhiner, Respondent's
personnel and safety director, and an insurance consultant. Wen
they arrived at the accident site, the area was barricaded and
t he Bobcat was still upside down. Wen Shirley's body was
renoved the day before, the back end of the Bobcat was picked up
and swung around 90 degrees and |aid back down. They found the
bucket to be Iowered but not in its |owest position. |nspector
Garcia observed a green fluid | eaking fromthe Bobcat, which he
determined to be notor oil. No hydraulic fluid appeared to be
| eaking fromthe Bobcat in its position at the accident site. The
roll-over protective structure (ROPS) had been renoved fromthe
Bobcat before the accident.

10. Normally, the Bobcat was used in confined areas in the
pl ant, which was level, for cleaning spillage under overhead
conveyor belts, horizontal rotary kilns and coolers. However,
Terry Davidson, an oiler, regularly used the Bobcat about tw ce
each month to travel up a ranp that led into the cooler pit on
the No. 2 kiln. Rich Glbert, the usual operator, was al so
observed using the Bobcat on this ranmp on several occasions,

i ncludi ng the night before the accident.

11. The Bobcat cane equi pped with a roll-over protective
structure. Respondent renmpved the ROPS so that the Bobcat could
maneuver inside the plant. Normally, the operator wore a hard
hat and no enpl oyee, before M. Shirley, had been injured while
operating the Bobcat with the ROPS renoved. Respondent did not
obtain an MSHA nodification approval to renove the ROPS. After
t he acci dent, Respondent replaced the 620 Bobcat with a 720
Bobcat and reduced the ROPS about 5 inches so that it coul d be
used inside the plant. Al so, Respondent built a suitable berm of
| arge rocks, which all owed drai nage over the edge of the dunp
haul age road.

12. The Bobcat, which wei ghed about 3 tons, was powered by
two hydrostatic notors and could attain a speed of 6.6 nph. The
operator powered and steered the Bobcat with two hand | evers
|ocated directly in front of his seat. To nove forward or
backwards, he would push or pull both |evers sinultaneously in
the direction he wanted to travel. |If he wanted to turn right or
left, he would push on lever forward and pull the other |ever
back. To stop the machine, he would rel ease both |l evers and a
spring mechanismwould return themto an upright position

13. The hydrostatic nmotors were | ocated under the
operator's seat. Wen the operator pushed the |levers forward or
pul | ed them back, a valve was activated, causing a vane punp to
draw hydraulic fluid fromtwo reservoir tanks, which were joined
by a cross-pipe or manifold so that they would al ways contain an
equal amount of fluid. The tube through which fluid was drawn
was about 1 inch fromthe bottom of the reservoir tanks.

14. The Bobcat devel oped a hydraulic fluid | eak severa



weeks before the accident. The hydrostatic system depended on an
equal bal ance of pressure so that the nore air that becane
trapped in the system the |ess
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efficiently the Bobcat woul d operate. As the level of fluid in
the reservoir tanks di m ni shed, the operator woul d experience
increasing difficulty in driving, steering and operating the
bucket, which was controlled by a separate valve. Synptons of an
i mbal ance in pressure ranged from squeaki ng noises to erratic or
"jerky" novenents when engagi ng the hand | evers. Qccasionally,

t he operator would have to stop the machine to add nore fluid and
some of the other enployees using the Bobcat experienced
difficulty keeping the engine running. Freddie Smtherman, who
was unaware of the | eak, noticed that the bucket woul d squeak
when raised or lowered. Terry Davidson, who was aware of the

| eak, testified that as the machine traveled forward, it left a
stream of hydraulic fluid inits path. He also testified that
whi | e operating the Bobcat, he would sonetinmes have difficulty
turni ng and occasionally he woul d hear squeaki ng noi ses. One
time, when he wanted to stop the machine, the |l evers remained in
the forward position, causing the machine to creep forward.

15. For about 3 weeks before the accident, the Bobcat was
| eaki ng hydraulic fluid fromthe rear axle and fromthe punp and
punp fittings, causing the machine to malfunction. The |oading
yard foreman had been aware of the | eak for about 3 weeks before
the accident. The Monteval l o Wl di ng Conpany had been requested
to pick up the Bobcat for servicing on Friday, Novenber 24.
However, it picked up a different piece of equipnment, which also
needed servicing, and the Bobcat was not repaired before M.
Shirley's accident.

16. In investigating the accident site, Inspector Garcia
observed two faint inpressions in the road that he determned to
be tire tracks. The right track was 142 feet |ong and veered
gradually to the right side of the road where the Bobcat
overturned. Before photographs were taken of the accident site,
the right tire track was painted to ensure that it would be
vi si bl e.

17. The Bobcat was transported to the shop on Monday,
November 27, to conduct tests on its driving, steering and bucket
functions. Inspectors Garcia and Scotty \Wall ace, safety director
M senhi ner, State Inspector Henson, Rich Glbert, the operator
and others were present. Mdtor oil was added to the engi ne
before the tests began. No hydraulic fluid was added. The | evel
of hydraulic fluid in the reservoirs was neasured to be about
1-1/2 inches, which was about 10 gallons. The Bobcat's reservoir
capacity was 17-1/2 gallons. No hydraulic fluid | eaked fromthe
machi ne whil e upside down foll owi ng the accident.

18. The first test involved operating the Bobcat on the
| evel concrete surface inside the shop. Al the nmachine's
functions, including steering and novenment of the bucket,
operated snoot hly.

19. The Bobcat was then taken outside with the notor
running and driven into a small ditch to approximate the grade on
t he haul age road. Wth the front of the Bobcat lower than its
rear, the fluid was expected to run to the front of the machine;



this test was to detern ne whether the punps were able to pick up
fluid fromthe reservoirs on a downward grade. \Wen the
operator, Rich Glbert, tried to nove the machine fromthe ditch,
none of its functions (forward and reverse novenent, steering,
bucket operation) woul d operate.
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20. The Bobcat was left in that position for about two weeks
until the sales representative fromAl tanta, M. Shoeback
arrived. He determned that the [ evel of hydraulic fluid had
decreased about one-quarter inch since Novenber 27. Before nore
tests were conducted, the sales representative added 7-1/2
gallons of fluid to the reservoirs. Wth the reservoir tanks
filled, the operator was able to nove the Bobcat out of the ditch
without difficulty. After driving aound the yard and returning
to the ditch, the operator released the hand | evers. However,
they remained in a forward position instead of returning to an
upri ght position.

21. In the MSHA inspector's opinion, three factors
contributed to the cause of the accident and M. Shirley's death:
a defect in the equi prment that caused hydraulic fluid to | eak and
af fect the Bobcat's steering; the absence of roll-over
protection; and the absence of a bermon the el evated haul age
road where the Bobcat |left the road and overturned down an
enmbanknent .

22. On Novenber 26, 1978, Inspector Garcia issued a
citation to Respondent, reading in part: "The road |eading up
the elevated ranp to the spoil dunp was not provided with a berm
to prevent equi pnent from goi ng over the bank on the open side.”
The cited condition was abated on Novenber 28, 1978, after
Respondent constructed adequate bernmns.

23. On Novenber 27, 1978, Inspector Garcia issued a
citation to Respondent, reading in part: "An oil leak existed in
the hydraulic systemon the O ark 620 Bobcat front-end | oader
whi ch adversely affected steering and contributed to a fata
accident on 11/25/78." The cited condition was abated on January
23, 1979, by repairing the source of the |eak

24. On Decenber 4, 1978, Inspector Garcia issued an order
of withdrawal to Respondent, reading in part: "The roll-over
protection structure had been renmoved fromthe C ark Ml roe
Bobcat nodel 620 front-end | oader, serial 4970-M 11013 that was
involved in a fatal accident on Novenber 25, 1978." The cited
condition was abated on January 23, 1979, by installing a
nodi fi ed ROPS on the Bobcat. No exception had been taken to the
absence of ROPS on the Bobcat during the | ast inspection of the
Monteval o Plant in March, 1977.

25. In May 1978, when Harry Reeves becane general nanager
of Respondent's plant, there was no safety program and he
directed Paul M senhinmer to establish a programthat woul d neet
t he needs of the conpany and the requirenents of MSHA. The
safety programthat was subsequently established required that
the m nutes of every neeting be forwarded to Reeves' office for
review. The neetings were conducted by M senhi mer and
Respondent' s supervisors, including Joe Dial. M senhiner
conducted 12 to 15 neetings in 1978. However, he was unable to
mai ntai n accurate records of all the neetings because he did not
conduct all of them



26. Terry Davidson testified that he could not recall one
way or the other whether he attended any safety neetings prior to
the accident. Freddie Smtherman testified that he could not say
how many safety nmeetings were held in 1978.
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27. Respondent's safety rules prohibited any enpl oyee from
starting or operating any machi ne or piece of equi pnment w thout
aut hori zation or without being qualified to operate it, which
i ncl uded knowi ng how to start, stop and operate it in a safe
manner. M. Shirley was required to sign a witten statenent
t hat acknow edged recei pt of Respondent's safety rul es bookl et.

28. Authority to operate the Bobcat and ot her pieces of
equi prent was given by the plant superintendent, the genera
manager, Harry Reeves, or the plant nanager, Joe Dial. Rich
Glbert, Wesley Smith and the | eadman, Freddi e Sm therman, were
aut horized to operate the Bobcat. Before an enpl oyee could
obtain authorization to operate the Bobcat, which was considered
more difficult to operate than other pieces of equi pnent, he was
supposed to becone qualified. Normally, when an enpl oyee
successfully bid on a piece of equipnment for which he had no
prior experience he would be placed in a training programwth an
experi enced operator so that he could gain the necessary
experience to become qualified and authorized. As shown bel ow,
Respondent did not enforce its equipnent-qualifying rule with any
regularity or by an established program

29. Freddie Smtherman operated the Bobcat before he was
"qualified" to operate it.

30. Various enpl oyees who were not authorized to operate
t he Bobcat, including, Herman Shirley, were seen operating it.
Terry Davidson, the oiler, operated the Bobcat without
aut hori zation at times when he needed a heavy object noved
between oil stations |ocated on either side of the plant and a
regul ar operator was not present. He had been using the Bobcat
about twice a week during the 5 nonths before the accident. Dial
was aware that Davidson drove the Bobcat. Ball mll hel pers and
t he burner hel pers al so drove the Bobcat w thout authorization
In July, 1978, Dial observed Shirley operating the Bobcat in
trying to renmove a piece of equipment froma pick-up truck and
told himthat he was not authorized to operate it and that he
shoul d get a regul ar Bobcat operator to handl e the job. Another
time, a fewnonths later, Dial told Shirley, in the presence of
Freddi e Smitherman, to stop using the Bobcat when he observed him
nmovi ng the machine out of the path of a truck he was driving.
The former plant superintendent, Lyle Butterworth, also told
Shirley on another occasion, in Dial's presence, to get off the
Bobcat .

31. Dial testified that Shirley was not qualified to
operate the Bobcat because he was tenpernental and preferred to
do things his own way, and that he al so tended to handl e
equi prrent roughly.

32. Shirley was never disciplined for operating the Bobcat
wi t hout authorization. Evans had reprinanded a nunber of
enpl oyees for violating safety rules but he never fired anyone
for a safety violation. Wile Evans was in charge, there were a
total of 5 fatalities in the whole plant.
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DI SCUSSI ON W TH FURTHER FI NDI NGS

On Novenber 26, 1978, Inspector Garcia charged Respondent
with a violation of 30 C.F. R [056.9-22, which provides: "Berns
or guards shall be provided on the outer bank of elevated
roadways." The basic issue as to this citation is whether the
berm on the outer bank of Respondent's el evated haul age road was
adequate to prevent equi pnent from going over the side of the
road.

The Secretary argues that the berns al ong Respondent's
haul age road were inadequate and that this condition contributed
to the death of Herman Shirley when the Bobcat he was operating
left the road and overturned on him

The Secretary reconmends a penalty of $10, 000.

Respondent contends that the cited standard is "vague and
uncertain" because it does not specify a required height for
berms or guards. Respondent al so contends that the Secretary's
application of section 56.9-22, which requires a bermto be as
high as the md-axle of the |argest piece of equipnment that
travels the road, is not published in 30 CF. R Part 56 and,
therefore, is not binding on Respondent. Respondent argues that
the berm along the road, which was 6 to 18 inches, was adequate
to stop the Bobcat from going over the side.

I find that Respondent violated 30 C.F. R [56.9-22 by
failing to provide or maintain a bermon the outer bank of the
haul age road at the site of the accident. A preponderance of the
evi dence shows that the bermwas constructed of road scrapings,
that it was 6 to 18 inches high and that at the site of the
accident it was washed out and deliberately allowed to remain
open for drainage. A visual exam nation of the photographs taken
on Novenber 26 shows an absence of a berm where the Bobcat
overturned. WIIliam Evans, the quarry foreman, testified that
when berns were washed out they were left unrepaired. | find
t hat Respondent was aware that the berm was inadequate and that
this condition allowed the Bobcat to | eave the road and
contributed to the fatal accident on Novenber 25, 1978.

Respondent's argunment that the cited standard is "vague and
uncertain" i s unpersuasive. There was no bermat the point where
t he Bobcat overturned. This was not a situation in which the
i nspector was given unbridled discretion to determ ne whether or
not a bermwas adequate. In this case, the berm had washed out
and Respondent purposely left it unrepaired in spite of the
obvi ous safety hazard.

On Novenber 27, 1978, Inspector Garcia charged Respondent
with a violation of 30 CF. R [156.9-2, which provides
"Equi prrent defects affecting safety shall be corrected before
equi prent is used.” The basic issue as to this citation is
whet her the leak in the Bobcat's hydraulic system affected the
safety of its operation.



The Secretary argues that the Bobcat | eaked hydraulic fluid,
t hat Respondent was aware of the |eak and that the |eak caused
t he operation of
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t he Bobcat, including steering and bucket novement, to

mal function. The Secretary contends that the | eak constituted a
defect that prevented the hydrostatic punp from drawi ng enough
fluid into the system causing the Bobcat to operate inproperly,
and that this defect contributed to the fatal accident.

The Secretary reconmends a penalty of $10, 000.

Respondent argues that the Bobcat was not defective and that
the leak in the hydrostatic systemdid not affect the operation
of its driving and steering functions. Respondent argues that
t he Bobcat was supposed to be used only on the | evel surface of
the plant's shop and that no one had previously taken it on the
haul age road. Respondent contends that the Bobcat operated
satisfactorily during the 3 weeks prior to the accident even
t hough the punps | eaked hydraulic fluid and that it was used the
ni ght before the accident w thout incident. Respondent contends
that the tests conducted after the accident show that the Bobcat
operated smoothly on the | evel plant surface even though its
reservoirs contained only 10 gallons of fluid.

I find that Respondent violated 30 C F.R [56.9-2 by
all owi ng the Bobcat to be used before a defect in the hydrostatic
system was corrected. A preponderance of the evidence shows that
t he Bobcat had been | eaking fluid for about 3 weeks prior to the
acci dent and that Respondent was aware of the leak. At the tine
of the accident, 7-1/2 gallons of fluid had | eaked fromthe
machi ne and it was scheduled to be repaired. Terry Davidson, the
oiler, testified that the | eak was very obvious and as the Bobcat
traveled forward it left a streamof fluid in its path. He also
testified that sonetimes he woul d have troubl e turning the Bobcat
and that he heard it make squeaki ng noises. He stated that on
one occasion he released the levers to stop the machi ne but they
remained in the forward position. This defect woul d prevent
stopping the vehicle so long as the notor was running. Freddie
Sm t her man, who used the Bobcat the night before the accident,
testified that the bucket squeaked when raised or |owered and
Rich Glbert testified that he would occasionally have to stop
the machine to add nore fluid.

On irregular terrain, an operator could stop the Bobcat by
| owering the bucket and causing it to stike a substantial nound
or hill before the machine. However, | find that the bucket was
neither intended to serve nor functioned reliably as a brake on a
graded surface such as the dunp haul age road. Lowering the
bucket could not stop the Bobcat on the elevated road to the
spoi | dunp.

The tests conducted on Novenmber 27, 1978, show that the
Bobcat operated snmoothly on a | evel surface. However, when
placed in a ditch with its front end down to approxi mate the
grade of the haul age road, the Bobcat would nove neither forward
or backward. This test would not explain why the Bobcat seened to
operate properly on the haul age road on Shirley's first trip to
and fromthe dunp but it raises a substantial question about the
machine's reliability. A preponderance of the evidence shows



that the Bobcat's steering, driving and bucket functions were
adversely affected by the | eak, particularly when the Bobcat was
used on a downward sl ope.
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On Decenber 4, 1978, Inspector Garcia charged Respondent wth
a violation of 30 CF.R [86.9-88, which provides in pertinent
part: " * * * al|l * * * front-end |loaders * * * as used in
metal and nonnetal mning operations, with or without
attachments, shall be used in such mning only when equi pped with
* * * Roll-over protective structures (ROPS)."

The Secretary contends that this violation contributed to
the fatal accident, and recomends a penalty of $10, 000.

The basic issue as to this citation is whether Respondent's
Bobcat 620 front-end | oader was required to be equi pped with
ROPS. Respondent admits that it renoved the roll-over protective
structure fromthe Bobcat so that it could manuever inside the
plant to clean in and around confined areas under overhead
conveyor belts and rotary kilns and cool ers. Respondent argues
t hat because the Bobcat was used only in the plant area the
equi prent was subject to 30 C F.R 0[56. 14-13, which requires al
front-end | oaders to be equi pped with protective canopi es "when
necessary to protect the operator,” rather than the cited
standard. Respondent contends that since all operators using the
Bobcat in the plant area wore hardhats, it was not necessary to
install an overhead canopy, and it was al so unnecessary to
provi de ROPS because there was no danger of the Bobcat
overturning. Respondent argues that the Bobcat was used only in
the plant area, that the operator always wore a hardhat, and that
no enpl oyee had been previously injured while operating the
Bobcat without ROPS. Respondent contends that no exceptions were
taken by inspectors during the last inspection of the Mntevallo
Plant in 1977 after the Bobcat's ROPS had been renoved

I find that Respondent violated 30 C.F.R [156.9-88 by
all owi ng the Bobcat to be used with the roll-over protective
structure removed. The cited standard unabi guously requires that
ROPS be provided on all front-end | oaders. | find unpersuasive
Respondent' s argunment that because the Bobcat was used in the
plant area it was relieved of this requirnent and | also find
unpersuasive its argunment that section 56.14-13 applied rather
than section 56.9-88. Respondent's argunments confuse the purpose
of protective canopies with the purpose of ROPS. The standard
that requires overhead canopi es only when needed to protect the
operator does not supersede or negate the requirenent that al
front-end | oaders be provided with ROPS. In nmany instances, an
over head canopy will provide the sane protection afforded by
ROPS. However, when an overhead canopy is not required, the
operator nust still be protected should the piece of equiprent
overturn, which is what ROPS are designed to do. In addition, the
fact that the Bobcat was regularly driven on the elevated ranmp in
the plant refutes the contention that it was confined to |evel
ar eas.

Respondent contends that it should not be held responsible
for the negligence and unaut horized conduct of an enpl oyee, and
asserts that the cause of the fatal accident was Shirley's
unaut hori zed and unsafe use of the Bobcat in direct violation of
the conpany's safety rules. Respondent contends that on three



previ ous occasions Shirley had been reprinmanded for using the
Bobcat and that he knew he was not all owed to operate equi prent
wi t hout authorization or w thout knowi ng how to operate it.
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The evi dence shows that a safety program was established about
5 nonths before the accident. However, the testinony of Pau
M senhi ner, the safety director, and Harry Reeves, the genera
manager, indicate that records of the nmeeting were not well kept.
Terry Davi dson and Freddie Smtherman, the only enpl oyees to
testify about the substance of the safety neetings, which were
supposedly held once a week, renmenbered very little about the
nmeeti ngs or whether any were held.

I find that Respondent did not adequately train its
enpl oyees about the dangers of operating equi pnent w thout being
qualified or without obtaining authority. There was evidence
that Herman Shirl ey acknow edged recei pt of the conpany's safety
handbook and that he knew of the rule against operating equi prent
wi t hout aut hori zati on. However, a preponderance of the evidence
shows that various enpl oyees who were not authorized to operate
t he Bobcat used the machi ne anyway and on three previous
occasi ons managenent personnel observed Shirley using it. Wen
observed using the equi pment w thout authorization, he was not
di sciplined but was told sinply to cease using it. There was
al so evidence, which | credit, that Respondent permitted its
enpl oyees to use the Bobcat wi thout being qualified. Freddie
Smitherman stated that he used the Bobcat with the consent of Joe
Dial, the plant foreman, before becom ng qualified. Only after
gai ning experience in this fashion did he becone qualified and,
subsequent |y, authorized.

I find that Respondent was negligent in not taking
appropriate neasures to prevent or deter Shirley (1) from
operating the Bobcat w thout authorization and (2) from operating
it on the dunp haulage road. | find that Respondent's safety
program failed to i npress upon Shirley an absol ute necessity to
refrain fromusing equi pment w thout authorization. | find that
Respondent took no measures, such as a warning sign, to prevent
enpl oyees from using the Bobcat on the dunp haul age road. | also
find that Respondent neglected to warn its enpl oyees who used the
haul age road, including Shirley, of the washed out berns on the
out er bank.

Respondent al so asserts that the Secretary failed to prove
by a preponderance of the evidence that the accident was caused
by a defect in the Bobcat's steering and driving systens and
argues that it was just as likely the result of Herman Shirley
suffering a heart attack while operating the Bobcat. Respondent
argues that the fact that Shirley was 67 years old and that the
Bobcat veered gradually for 142 feet to the side of the road |ead
to a reasonable inference that Shirley becane unconsci ous and
slunped forward onto the | evers, causing the nachine to continue
traveling down the haul age road and to | eave the road. However,
there was no nedi cal evidence to support a conclusion that Herman
Shirl ey was rendered unconsci ous before the machine left the
road, and | find this theory to be nere speculation. The
preponderance of the evidence establishes that death was due to a
conbi nati on of defects negligently caused and pernitted by
Respondent, including: (1) the hydraulic fluid leak; (2) the
m ssing berm and (3) the renoval of the ROPS. These negligent



defects conmbi ned with Respondent's negligence in not taking nore
ef fecti ve and reasonabl e neasures to prevent or deter Shirley
from operating the Bobcat wi thout authorization and from
operating it on the dunp haul age road.
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CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

1. The undersigned Judge has jurisdiction over the parties
and subject matter of this proceedi ng.

2. Respondent violated 30 CF.R [156.9-22 by failing to
provide a bermon the outer bank of the el evated roadway as
alleged in Citation No. 81004. Based upon the statutory criteria
for assessing a civil penalty for a violation of a nmandatory
safety standard, Respondent is assessed a penalty of $10, 000 for
this violation.

3. Respondent violated 30 C F. R [156.9-2 by using
defective equi pnent, i.e., the Bobcat front-end | oader, as
alleged in Citation No. 81004. Based upon the statutory criteria
for assessing a civil penalty for a violation of a nmandatory
safety standard, Respondent is assessed a penalty of $5,000 for
this violation.

4. Respondent violated 30 CF.R [56.9-88 by failing to
provide roll-over protection on the Bobcat front-end | oader as
alleged in Citation/Oder No. 81053. Based upon the statutory
criteria for assessing a civil penalty for a violation of a
mandat ory safety standard, Respondent is assessed a penalty of
$10, 000 for this violation.

ORDER

VWHEREFORE I T IS ORDERED that Allied Products Conpany shall
pay the Secretary of Labor the above-assessed civil penalties, in
the total anount of $25,000.00, within 30 days fromthe date of
t hi s deci sion.

W LLI AM FAUVER
JUDGE



